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Ffynone

SN242386           OS 25”  VII.11 & 15         Manordeifi

Cadw listed buildings

Cadw Register of Historic Parks and Gardens

1870  (J of H and cottage Gardener: Horticultural Directory)

          John Colby Esq.    Gardener  James Smith

1919   (GC: Horticultural Directory and Yearbook) 

            

J. Vaughan Colby Esq.   Gardener  James Grimes. 

1920   (Kelly’s)  Col. Spence-Jones

                        (Mr John Vaughan Colby was a principal landowner in Capel Colman parish)

1923   (Kelly’s)  Col.  Cecil J. H. Spence-Colby

                        (Commercial)   Col. Spence-Colby’s Foxhounds

                        Head Gardener  John Grime (sic)

                        Gamekeeper  William Owen

“The Dividing Stream” by David James  (Pembrokeshire Life August 1996)

A Colby came from Suffolk in 16C (but later in the article it refers to the 17C). Lawrence Colby lived at Castell Dwyran near Narberth and was buried at Bletherston in 1699.

His son John maried the heiress of Theosophilus Jones of Rhos y Gilwen and this soon became part of the Bletherston estate.

Thomas Colby, his son, was an RM (?) officer.

His son, also Thomas, was a surveyorand colonel in the RE.  He produced the first OS maps (Pembrokeshire, no56, in 1843)

(Susan Lloyd of Dolau Llanerch in Clydau parish married Morgan ap Howell. They lived at Blaenbylan and became known as Morgan. The estate was expanded to 3000 acres and descendants married into the Saunders of Pentre, the Lewis Bowens of Clynfyw and the Jones of Rhosygilwen. A series of early deaths, mortgages, etc meant sales and in 1752 Ffynone Bychan was sold to Captain Colby, second son of John Colby of Rhosygilwen together with much of the estate.)

A Lawrence Colby was killed in 1914 and his father John died in 1919. His daughter married a Spence and changed their name to Spence Colby. The 

estate was sold in the 1920’s.

Ffynone south entrance is in the crossroads village of Bwlchygroes. Three of the gate piers with their globe finials survive next to the modernised lodge. The other has been knocked down to make room for the boundary wall of a new bungalow.

The drive obiquely crosses a present-day minor road after about 800m; the drive and road are one for perhaps 30m. To the west (left hand side) is a modernised lodge (Glan rhyd isaf) but there is no sign of gate piers.

Documents in the file:

“The Dividing Stream” by David James

(The Teiviside Gentry?) extract with photograph

“Heritage” by Alison Heighton. Pembrokeshire Life Sept 1995

Cutting from Western Telegraph 29 November 2000: Lord Parry review of book about the Lloyd Georges “A Tale of two Grandfathers” by Owen Lloyd George.

Colour photographs of house, garden and entrances etc.

Ditto of memorials at Manordeifi churches.

Cadw listing of garden fountain and entrance piers.

Leaflet about modern planting.

Notes taken on walk in woodland.

House by John Nash. Two Coade Corinthian capitals supplied 1796 (Gunnis). Plan by Terence Davis, John Nash 1966, p25. Columns shown at end of dining room, now the library. Surviving but painted.  (Alison Kelly Mrs Coade’s Stone SPA 1990)

Owner Earl Lloyd George  01239 841610

